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1« Name of Property

Higaic name Jefferson Baracks Higtoric Didrict (Amendman)

Other names/site number. N/A

2. Location

Sredt & numba On Missssppi River ebout 10 milessouth of downtown & Louis  Nd for pudiction N/A
City or town. . Louis Vicinity.

Sae  Misour Coke MO Cautv & Lous . Qo180 Zip aode 63125

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this

X nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my
opinion, the property X meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered
significant X nationally statewide locally. ( See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of certifying official Mark A. Miles/ Deputy SHPO Date

Missouri Department of Natural Resources
State or Federal agency and bureau.

In my opinion, the property meets _ does not meet the National Register criteria.
( See continuation sheet for additional comments.)
Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby certify that this property Is: if Keeper Date of Action

. entered In the National Register
See continuation sheet.

. determined eligible for the
National Register
See continuation sheet.

. de”rmined not eligible for the
National Register

/emoved from the National Register

dhe (eplan). Additiond Dooumentation Approved



Jefferson Baracks Higoric Didrict (Amendman)
Name d Propaty

5. Classification

Category of Property
(Check only one box)

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)

X private building(s)

X public-local X district

X public-State site

X public-Federal structure
object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property Is not part of a multiple property listing.]

N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Defense - Military facility
Defense - Arms sorage
Domedtic- ingtitutional housing
Trangportation- rail-related
Transportation- water-related

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

Other - Standardized Military plans

Narrative Description

St. Louis Countv. Missouri
County and State

Number of Resources within Property
(Do notinclude previously listed resources Inthe count)
* Contributing ‘Noncontributing

70 13 buildings
2 1 sites
5 5 Structures
4 3 objects
8l 2  Totd

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

4

Current Functions
(Enter categories from Instructions)

Defense-military facility

Landscgpe- county park

Reoredtion & Culture- musaum

Recredtion & Culture- outdoor recregtion
Recregtion & Culture- monumat and work of art
Rdigion - rdigiousfacility

Education - library facility

Domedic - sngle & multiple dwelling
Domedic - ingtitutional housing
Trangportation- rail-related

Materials
(Enter categories from Instructions)
foundation Stone

roof

walls  Brick
Limegtone

Other

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)



Jefferson Baracks Higoric Didgrict (Amendmean)
Nare d Ropaty

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying
the property for National Register listing)

X A Property Is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

. B Property Is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

X  C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of atype, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant
and distinguishable entity whose components
lack Individual distinction.

X D Property has yielded, or Is likely to yield
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.)

_ A owned by a religious Institution or used
for religious purposes.

. B removed from its original location.

a hirthplace or a grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object or structure.
a commemorative property.

less than 50 years of age or achieved
ignificance within the past 50 years.

w® T m O O

Narrative Statement of Significance

St. Louis Countv. Missouri
County and State

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from Instructions)

Commace

Exploration/Sattlement

Military
Archaeoloev/Higoric-Non-aborigind

Period of Significance
1826-1946

Significant Dates
N/A

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B Is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder

Quatamede Corps dandardized plans

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS)

Preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has been

requested.

_X_ Previously listed in the National Register
Previously determined eligible by the National Register
Designated a National Historic Landmark

.JLRecorded by Historic American Buildings Survey # MO-1809

Recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #
Jefferson Barracks Higtoric Didtrict

Primary Location of Additional Data
X State Historic Preservation Office

x Other State agency
Federal agency
X Local government
X University
Other
Name of repository:
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Summary;

The Jefferson Barracks Historic District is located on abluff above the west bank of the
Mississippi River ten miles south of &. Louis, Missouri in &. Louis County. Thishistoric
military reserve was established in 1826 and sarved as a federd miilitary installation until 1946.
It was listed inthe Nationa Regiger of Historic Flaces on February 1, 1972. Today, a portion of
the listed digtrict is operated and maintained by the Missouri National Guard. The oldest extant
buildings, relating to the post's occupation by the United States Army Ordnance Corp, ae
maintained by the . Louis County Parks Depatment as the Jefferson Barracks Historic Park.
Additiona buildings are in private ownership. This amendment does not change the boundaries
of the historic district, ingead it expands the areas and period of significance and provides a
complete inventory of resources  There are 83 buildings, 10 structures, 3 dtes and 7 objects
within the district boundaries, of which 70 buildings, 5 sructures, 2 dtes and 4 objects ae
counted as contributing resources  The district contains 13 buildings, 5 structures, 1 Ste and 3
objects that are congdered non-contributing. The district as well as the adjacent county
parklands is a setting of well-tended, beautiful, mixture of hardwood forest, open green aress,
walking paths, quiet roadways and handsome old military buildings. The property contained
within the boundaries of the Jefferson Barracks Historic District mantains integrity of location,
design, setting, materias, workmanship, feeling and association.

Setting and Boundaries:

This amendment doesnot dter the district boundaries st in the original submission listed
in 1972 (see section 10 of this amendment). Jefferson Baracks Historic District congsts
primarily of two sections the ordnance section to the north owned by &. Louis County
Depatment of Parks and Recreation and the old post section surrounding the parade ground to
the south, controlled by the Missouri National Guard and in private ownership.

Three of the boundaries of the historic digtrict are very distinct. A resdential area a the
north edge of the park and School Sgers of Notre Dame Campus bound the northem border of
the Historic District. The goece between the school, resdentia area and the county park is
overflowing with trees establishing a natura sreen between the two aress. From indde the park
there is no visible evidence of a resdentia aea on the other Sde of the tree barrier. The
Mississppi River had defined the original eestem border of Jefferson Barracks, but the district
boundary actualy extends only to the riverside railroad right of way. Jefferson Barracks is
Stuated high above the river. From behind the Administration Building, the view of the dramatic
curve of theriver as well as the S. Louis downtown skyline, including the Gateway Arch can be
seen. The northem border of Jefferson Barracks National Cemetery establishes the southem
boundary of the historic district. The portion of the cemetery that can be seen from the didtrict is
the location of the origina 1826 post (sse nationd register nomination of the Jefferson Barracks
National Cemetery for more information) and the area is the location of the oldest burials. The
cametery ismeticuloudy cared for and adds to the sanse of gpenness to the Historic District.
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The westem boundary is not st with a specific street, the westem sections of Jefferson
Barracks was sold into private ownership after the army decided to leave Jefferson Barracksin
1946. From the southem boundary a the cemetery the border tums north aong Cooke Road until
Keamey Road, then west dong Keamey, which becomes Buell Stredt, to the intersection with
Grover Road, then one block north to the three-way intersection of Grover Road, Jackson Stret
and Sheaman Road. The boundary then tums esswad to Lee Circle Drive. The boundary
followsLee Circle until it meets Gregg Rd. Continues northeast with Gregg Rd until Gregg road
tums to the north; a this point the boundary of the historic follows dong a walking trail in
owned by the Parks Department meeting with Grant road just to the north of building 72, the
eectric subgtation. Then the rest of the boundary is smply Grant Road, the origina entrance
road for the barracks established in 1826. Grant Road mns dong a north-south axis and goes
fi-om the original North Entrance into the Barracks to the administration building.

Historic Devdopment

In 1826, the United States govemment edteblished the Jefferson Barracks Military
Reserve as a school of infantry practice and the departure point for the Federd Government's
operations to open the Louisana Territory. Inthe 1840s the U. S Cavary School moved fi"om
Carlide Barracks in Pennsylvania to Jefferson Barracks. In 1850 the mission of the barracks was
divided between the U. S Army Ordnance Corps on the north end and the U. S Cavary on the
south. The Ordnance Corp built a series of munitions magazines and ancillary support buildings
with their primary misson the storing and maintenance of ams and ammunition. Additions to
the ordnance areafi” om1866-78 were for munitions sorage after the Civil War. Inthe 1840s the
Cavdry inherited the origina barracks quadrangle and adjacent buildings (congmcted in the
1820s) from the Infantry. I n 1888 the War Department directed the reconstmction of the cavary
post. Allthe origina cavary buildings were razed and replaced with the present smctures
between 1890 and 1910. The baracks were expanded agan beween from 1933-1942 to
accommodate housing for CCC inductees and troop build-up for World War 1. The mgjority of
the buildings are congmcted of brick with limestone foundations. Ordnance and ordnance
related buildings are mede either entirely of limestone or of brick with limestone foundations.

The 1820s saw theinitial constmction of the original stone barracks, sablesand ancillary
buildings to accommodate the infantry school and to equip troops heading wed. Little remans
from this earliest period of devdopment, though the origina parade grounds and a quarry that
supplied much of the building materia on post are extant and counted as contributing to the
district. During the 1830s and 1840 there was little additional constmction. In the 1850s the
majority of the constmction was in the ordnance section to house local munitions moved from
the &. Louis Arsend to the barracks dte, a this time the Ordnance Department consmcted a
number of ammunition and wegpons magazines with support facilities. Extant resources dating
from this period include a sone sable (building #350), a laborers house (building #360), and
two ordinance magazines. During the Civil War period the post initially supported the southem
advance of Generd Grant's Army of the West. Asthe action moved southward medica facilities
and hospital ward were congmcted west of the barracks to sarvice battle field wounded that
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arrived by train and ship from thefi-ont.Nothing of this hospita facility remains

In the 1870s and 1880 the hospital dosed and the barracks retumed to its earlier fiinction
& a cavdry post. In the late 1880s the War Depatment, after embarassng congressond
investigations and scandds decided to rebuild many of its old posts including Jefferson
Barracks. Some constmction begean in the barracks inthe 1880s, but it was during the 1890s and
early 1900s that the Barracks entered itsreform and rebuilding phase Mot of the new barracks,
sables and support buildings were constmcted of brick with sone foundations from sandardized
Quatermader plans. Mobilization for World War | causad a boom in congmction on the
Barracks, though most of it was temporary housng and support gmctures. 1n the1920s and
1930s the temporary buildings were razed and only minor permanent constmction wes
accomplished. Only the Pogt Exchange Lunchroom (building 224), constmcted in 1919, dates
from this period of devedopment. The 1930s sawv significant changes to the post as building
initiatives and CCC training sourred by the Depresson and mobilization for World War 1 |
reinvigorated activities a the Barracks. The greatest period of temporary and sami-permanent
constmction was during the late 1930s and World War |1. Though the temporary housing hes
been removed, gpproximately 30 resourcesin the historic district date from this period.

Architectural Character of Buildingswithin the Ordnance Section;

As noted earlier, the district is roughly divided into two sections. the ordnance section
now largely owned by the &t. Louis County Parks Department and the old pogt sections managed
by the Missouri National Guard and severd private owners. The ordinance section is part of the
425 acres owned Jefferson Barracks Historic Park that extends south to Hancock Road and the
northem boundary of National Guard Base. A portion of the Jefferson Barracks Historic Park,
the property eest of Grant Road, lies within the boundaries of the National Regigter listed
Jefferson Barracks Historic District. This areaincdludes sone and brick buildings constmcted for
the ordnance depot a Jefferson Barracks in the 1850s and some of the officer housing unitson
the north dde of the parade grounds constmcted during the 1890's. Ordnance and ordnance
related buildings are made either entirely of limestone or of brick with limestone foundations.
All other buildings are ether red brick on a limestone foundation, entirely constmcted of
limestone or woodframewith duminum siding. Many of the origina smctures exist with newer
constmction scattered through out the park. The . Louis County Depatment of Parks and
Recregtion Depatment is usng the ordnance buildings and other smctures as housing for
museum collections and maintenance buildings.

Architectural Character of Buildingswithin the Old Pogt Section;

The 135-acre Sate of Missouri National Guard bese property includes the original parade
ground that is flanked by a number of red brick barracks, and other brick buildings constmcted
in the 1890s The original sone barracks and gables erected in the 1820s once stood in their
place but were taken down when the existing buildings were constmcted in amgor nationa War
Depatment rebuilding and modemization progran of the 1890s Sones from the origind
buildings were reused in the foundationsand walls. Many of these dmctures have been adgpted
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over timeto sarve different fiinctions. The National Guard has rehabilitated some buildings to
modem Sandards, others have stood vacant snce the end of World War |1.

Jefferson Barracks represents an archetypd example of the utilitarian military lbese of
tum of the century America. As such, it has played a significant role inthe lives of generations
of soldiers and families. The gtes "sense of place” particularly in its juxtaposition with the
cemetery, dicitsitsessentiad cormection to the larger history of the American military.

Architecturaly, the buildings are excdlent exanples of the Military Vemacular-spare
utilitarian buildings congmcted of smple materias and with few adomments. The buildings
were constmcted according to 1880s dandardized plans originating in the Department of the
Quartermagter Corps of the United Stiates Army in Washington, DC.

The loca identity of the region is expressad primarily in the prevaent use of loca red
bricks for the buildings and locally quarried limestone for foundation wallsand such features as
aretainingwall and aplaza The limestone quarry from which the sone was teken is located to
the north of the post ad is owned by S. Louis County Parks and Recregtion. The quarry isa
contributing resource in the district.

In the old pogst section of Jefferson Barracks, the buildings are formally arranged around
a large parade ground of asymmetrica shgpe The current composition of buildings on the ste
cregtes a srong wall of barracks buildings axchored a the eestem end by the headquarters
building and a the westem end by line of brick buildings dong Worth Road. Until the 1960s a
long line of duplex officer resdences and alarge Bachdor Officer Quarters enclosed the parade
ground on the north dong Sherman Road. Two of these original officer duplexes, number's 12
and 16, remain sanding. The origina entry to the pog is located a the junction of Worth Road
and Sherman Road.

The buildings consst of ample red brick messes with regularly goeced ssgmentd-arched
window openings and squared mbble foundations mede of locally quarried limestone. The plans
of the buildingsae generdly symmetricd around a centrd gar hal or entry. In the barracks
buildings, this core is flanked by the large open goecesthat housed soldiers. Theroof forms are
ether hipped or gabled. Dormers of distinct desgn punctuate the roof forms of key buildings.
The eave detailing was originally a built-in gutter and still exists on the barracks buildings.
Exterior architectural decoration is confined, for the mog part, to the wood trim on the porches
and occasiondly eaves There is evidence of origind wood trim profilesmore daborate than
what currently exists. The buildings are well adgpted to the summer heat with open gallery
porches and tall ceilings. Important features of the buildings are the naturd draft ventilation
sysemsthat have sculpturd cupolas on the roof ridges of the buildings.

Building Descriptions

The following inventory is divided into three sections the first lists and describes the
resources on the National Guard property, and the second lists the smctures within the & Louis
County Depatment of Parks and Recredtion boundaries and third lists resources in private
ownership. Current addresses for buildings outsde the Nationd Guard bese are indicated as well as the
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current ownership of the proparty. United Sates Army Quatameder plan numbas ae indicated for
each property if known.

The tag lines for eech smcture will read as follows: index number, building number
assgned by the military, historic name of building, origina military fiinction and constmction
date if known. Stregt addresses date of constmction, photo number (if referenced) are dso
noted. Finaly, eech entry isdesgnated with a"C" if contributing, or "NC" if non-confributing to
historical significance.

Buildings within the Jefferson Barracks Higtoric District. Indde Nationa Guard Boundarv

Note: After the northem portion of Jefferson Baracks became a . Louis County park in 1950, sevard
roads wae diminated, leaving same buildings with dredt addresses that no longer hed arationd
relaionship to the sredt pattem.  Some addresses have bean dnangad to reflect the new orientation of the
buildings.

1 #1 Administrafion Building. 1 Merritt Place. 1900. C

The Administration Building was built according to Quartermaegter Plan #99 YA A. Thisis
atwo-story rectangular brick building. The limestone foundation is squared mbble with arock-
faced water table. The basament windows ae visible aove ground. The hipped roof of
composition shingles has gables on the eest and west devations, a pediment dormer on the south
elevation and dentil molding around the entire circumference of the roofline. The eedt and west
asymmetrica facades are flat, except for a projecting section surrounding the entrance. One-
over-one-sash windowswith sone sillsare st in pairs on the south wing, and individually inthe
later constmction of the north wing. The gablefronts are detailed with Pdladian windows. The
building was congmcted on what had previoudy been the eestem end of the gone barracks
quadrangle.

A two-story, 31-foot long wing added on the north end of the building in 1942, integrates
well with the origina ssmcture. The United States Enginears Department drew the plans for this
addition and the WPA did the constmction work. The foundation of the addition is meade of
concrete rather than sone. The Administration Building is now the office of the Air National
Guard base commander, 157th Air Operations Group.

The gandard plans and specifications for an Administration Building for a regimental
post were modified & Jefferson Barracks to acoommodete the local Situation. Building records
from the period explain why the building gopearsto havetwo fronts: "the rear elevation should
be modified 0 as to present the gopearance of afront, as the rear of the building will overlook
the parade ground.” The rear eevation overlooks the Mississippi River.

2. #21 Wes GateHouse. 21 Center Drive. NC
The small square building is constmcted of red brick. On the upper portion of the west
facade isalarge sngle pain glasswindow. On the southem fagade is duminumframedoor with
glass in the upper center of the door. The roof is front gable clad in gray agphdt shingles
Though the exact date of constmction isunknown, the house was built with in the last 30 years.
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3. #22 Main Gae House 22 Shaman Drive. 2003. NC
This building was consgmcted when the entrance to the National Guard section weas
moved to the north of the parade grounds. The ssmcture isalarger verson of #21, the West Gate
House. It is congmcted of red brick. There is a solid sed door on the westem and eeslem
fagade's. On the northem fagade is alarge meta single panewindow overlooking the gate. The
roof is alow-hipped roof with asphdt shingles.

4. #24 Armed Forces Resrve Center. Under Constmction. NC
This building isunder constmction and will housethe new quarters for the Army Reserve
Units. The ssmcture will be compatiblein fedl and look to the 1890s barracks. Itwill have aged
frame on the indde but will have ared brick fagade covering the cinderblock constmction, to
keep the samefed astheres of the pog.

5. #25 Cavdry Baracks. 25 Shaman Rd. 18%4. C

The barracks were consgmcted according to Quartermaster Plans 41-A. Thisbuilding isa
dight variation of its neighbors, buildings26, 27, 28, and 29. They are nearly identica double
cavalry baracks. These large rectangular buildings face north on the southem border of the
parade ground. Each facade is symmetrica with afive-baythree-sory center coreflanked by
svenbay two-story wings. The center core houses the entry hall daircase, office and latrine
goaces while the wings provide goece for froop bays. The gabled rooflines of the wings
complement the hipped roof of the center core, which contains a hip-roofed dormer on the north
and south devations. Wooden covered porches mn the length of both floors of eech wing on
north elevation. Onthefirst floor of the center core asmdl porch covers double entry doors (not
original). On the sscond and third floors of the center section four-sash windows flank alarger
center window. Unlike the other cavalry barracks Building #25 does not have the hipped roof
dormers on the roof of the center core but does have cupolas over the wings. The wings of the
buildings a Jefferson Barracks were built in line with the center portion forming a straight line.

The higtoric stmcturd sygem isintact throughout. Original windows have been replaced
but remain two over two. Wood porch floors, pods, ad rails are compatible but not original.
Origina wood porch cellings and the origina stone entry to the basament remain on the esst
dde. The masonry comiceisadistinctive feature. Building #25 is currently closed.

6. #26 Cavdry Barracks 26 Sherman Rd. 1896. C
The baracks were congmcted according to Quatermader Fans 41. This large
rectangular building faces north on the southem border of the parade ground, each facede is
symmetrica with afive-baythree-gory center coreflankedby sevenrbay two-story wings. The
center core housss the entry hall darcase, office and latrine goeces while the wings provide
goecefor troop bays. The gabled rooflinesof the wings complement the hipped roof of the center
core, which contains a hip-roofed dormer on the north and south eevations. Wooden covered
porches mn the length of both floors of each wing on north dlevation. On the first floor of the
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center core a smdl porch covers double entry doors (not original). On the second and third
floors of the center section four-sash windows flank alarger center window.

The masonry comice and the triple coursed arches are distinctive features on this
building. Historic photogragphs indicate that building #26 once had the centra hipped roof
dormers characterigic of Quatemager Plan #41. The Army Resave currently occupies
building #26.

7. #27 Cavdry Barracks. 27 Sherman Rd. 1898. C

The baracks were congmcted according to Quatemade Fans 41. This lage
rectangular building faces north on the southem border of the parade ground, each facede is
symmetrica with afive-baythree-story center coreflankedby sevenrbay two-story wings. The
center core houses the entry hall darcase, office and latrine goaoces while the wingsprovide
Soecefor troop bays. The gabled rooflinesof the wings complement the hipped roof of the center
core, which contains a hip-roofed dormer on the north and south devations. \Wooden covered
porches mn the length of both floors of each wing on north elevation. On the first floor of the
center core a smdl porch covers double entry doors (not original). On the sscond and third
floors of the center section four-sash windows flank alarger center window.

Barracks #27, #28, and #29 were built by William H. O'Brien Constmction Co. Barracks
Buildings #26, #27, #28, and #29 were congmcted according to Quatermester Plan #41.
Origina wall vent openings have been bricked in on #27. The barracks goaces remain without
the columns in #27. The masonry comice is a distinctive feature of #27. The Army National
Guard currently occupies building #27.

8 #28 Cavdry Barracks. 28 Sherman Rd. 1898. C

The baracks were congmcted according to Quatermegter Flans 41. This large
rectangular building faces north on the southem border of the parade ground, each facade is
symmetrica with afive-baythree-gory center coreflankedby sevenrbay two-story wings. The
center core houses the entry hall darcase, office and latrine goeces while the wings provide
Soecefor troop bays. The gabled rooflinesof the wings complement the hipped roof of the center
core, which contains a hip-roofed dormer on the north and south elevations. Wooden covered
porches mn the length of both floors of eech wing on north dlevation. On the first floor of the
center core a smdl porch covers double entry doors (not origina). On the sscond and third
floors of the center section four-sash windows flank alarger center window.

Building #28 hes the origina wooden windows. The original stone entry to the basament
remans on the eesem sde. Origina wall vent openings have been bricked in on #28. The
comice and gutter have been dtered extensively on Building #28. Building #28 is home to the
218* Engineering Squadron, Air National Guard.

9. #29 Cavdry Barracks. 29 Sheman Rd. 1897. C
The baracks were congmcted according to Quatermegter Fans 41. This large
rectangular building faces north on the southem border of the parade ground, each facade is
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symmetrica with afive-baythree-story center coreflankedby seventbay two-story wings. The
center core houses the entry hall gaircase, office and latrine goeces while the wings provide
goacefor troop bays. The gabled rooflinesof the wings complement the hipped roof of the center
core, which contains a hip-roofed dormer on the north and south devations. \Wooden covered
porches mn the length of both floors of eech wing on north elevation. On the first floor of the
center core a smal porch covers double entry doors (not original). On the second and third
floors of the center section four-sash windows flank a larger center window. Stone buttresses
and anchors have been added to offset smctura settlement in Building #29. Building #29 is
currently closed.

10. #36 Mess Hall. 31 Shaman Rd. 1834. NC

Building #36 was constmcted originally according to Quartermaster Plan #36 as amess
hall and dining room. Along with the neighboring guardhouse, the building is set dightly
forward of the line of barracks buildings dong the southem edge of the parade ground. This
brick building is made of two one-story rectangular buildings connected by ancther rectangular
section with its own fagade and entryway. The length of the long dimension of eech of these
rectangles varies, giving the eest evation an irregular igpe The north section of the building
originally contained the mess hall and was atached to the kitchen section on the southem end by
a sxteen-foot wide hall. The mess hall section has ahipped roof with a series of dormers on the
southem elevation. The center section hes a gabled rooflinein the back and agabled roof on the
fagade. Thekitchen hes agabled roof in the front and reer.

Photographic evidence indicates that the mess hall section originally had arched windows
all around, and dormers on eech Sde of theroof Between 1935 and 1940 mogt of the dormers
were removed and the roof was dtered with a long clerestory or monitor along the roofline,
presumably to improve ventilation. The number of windows decreased and in some casss the
aches were squared of f The peeked roof of the middle section, which connected the mess hall
and kitchen, was dtered to a flat roof The exterior brick of the middle section was replaced
with the buff brick typical of homes in post World War || subdivisions.

The building underwent extendve renovation in 1998. The Air National Guard radically
remodded the interior of the building for administrative office goace The roof and windowsin
the mess hall section were replaced and the wood guttering was retrofitted. The original
foundation and timberswere | eft intact and the ok lumber post and beam is still visible today in
the basement of that section. The middle section that connected the mess hall and the kitchen
was completely tom out and replaced. The building supports were replaced with earthquake
proof sted peering. The kitchen section was the remodded into meeting rooms.

Recent additions are generdly compatible with the character of the podt's architecture.
Limestone retaining and foundation walls & the lower level are an important character dement.
Limestone walls edge the ste on the eestem sde of the building to meke alower level pededtrian
court with Building #37 and #78. The Quatermagter's logo is over the center of a door on the
north sde of the building. Building #36 is now office and meeting goece for thel57th Air
Operations Group, Air Nationa Guard. Due to the massve amount of changesto the stmcture of
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the building, mainly windows and roofing smctures this is a non-contributing building to the
district.

11. #37 Guard House. 37 Sheman Rd. 1897. C

Built by contractors J. Clark & Sonsaccording to Quatermagter Plan #9, #37 replaced an
earlier guardhouse (old building #10). The building is located a the southwest comer of the
origina quadrangle. Along with the neighboring mess hall, the building is st dightly forward of
the line of barracks buildingsadong the southem edgeof the parade ground. Thissingle-story T-
shgped building is st into ahill 0 that the besement is partialy below ground level inthe front
but completely above ground inthereer.

Building #37 is one the mog distinctive buildings on the base, notable for its broad
hipped roof that descends to shdter generous porches.  Arched windows, bracketed hip-roof
dormers, and beed-board soffits remain from origina constmction. The porch brackets match the
brackets on the dormers. Building #37 is currently in use as adining facility for the Air National
Guard. On the basament level, the Air National Guard houses the Battle Management Training
Center.

12. #39 Ordnance Store House. 39 Keamey Rd. 1900 C
This is an example of a utility building on the pos. The one-story, gabled rectangular
brick building hes a concrete block addition on its southeest comer. The origina one-by-four
bay door and window configuration hes been extensvely dtered but remans visible due to the
sgmentd arches and gonelug sills. The rafter endsand soffit detailing on the northem sde are
original, as is the gable detailing on the eetem dde. Building #39 is currently the location of
Base Cable Central.

13. #40 Cavdry Stable. 40 Johnson Rd. 1891. C

Eight gables were congmcted a the beginning of the post's magor reconstmction
program in 1890. Seven of these buildings 40-42, and 44-47 ae still ganding (Stable #43 was
demolished between 1962 and 1977). Origina constmction of sables#40-#47 was according to
Quatermager Flan 44-A. Thetypica plan was 23 narrow bays|ong and three bayswide under a
long hipped roof Originally the roof ridge had ventilation monitors.

The first building constmcted in the reform and rebuilding phase, Stable #40 hes suffered
the mog changes over the years. The door and window configurations have been extensvely
dtered and aflat roof replaced the original after a fire. Building #40 is vacant.

14. #41 Cavdry Stable. 41 Johnson Rd. 1903. C
Origina constmction of gables #41 was according to Quatermager Plan 44-A. The
typical plan was 23 narrow bays long and three bayswide under along hipped roof Originally
the roof ridge had ventilation monitors.
Remodding hes changed the origina window and door configurations extensvely,
converting the long eest elevation to nine garage doors in 1943. Filled-in ghogs of the broader
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original doors ae visble & eech end. The historic stmcture sysgem of this building is intact
throughout. Building #41 isnow an Air National Guard V ehicle Maintenance Shop.

15. #42 Cavary Stable. 42 Johnson Rd. 1895. C

Original constmction of gables #42 was according to Quartermeder Plan 44-A. The
typical plan was 23 narrow bays long and three bays wide under along hipped roof Originally
theroof ridge had ventilation monitors.

The tops of the segmenta-arched windows were lowered, probably during the historic
barracks converson. Some have subsequently been dosed completdly. Doors are gpproached
by concrete stoops. Filled-in ghogts of original doors are visible a eech end. Theinterior of this
building may be more preserved since the building has been dosed up and not converted for
reuse. Stable #42 was converted to NCO quarters in 1908 following plan #1-833 for converson
from stables. Building #42 is vacant.

16. #44 Cavdry Stable. 44 Hunter Rd. 1896. C

Origina constmction of dables #44 was according to Quartermadier Plan 44-A. The
typical plan was 23 narrow bays long and three bays wide under along hipped roof Originally
theroof ridge had ventilation monitors.

Building #44 is the best preserved of the original gable buildings. The long seventeen-
bay hip-roofed porch is generdly in character with the building. Origina windows and doors
have been replaced with lower two-over-two windows, leaving stucco pands in the upper
sctions. Circular metd vents punctuate the roof Sables #43-47 were converted into recmit
barracks in 1908 following plan #1-832 for converson from sables to barracks. Building #44
houses the Human Resources for the Army Resarve,

17. #45 Cavdry Stable. 45 Hunter Rd. 1896. C

Origina constmction of dables #45 was according to Quartermeder Plan 44-A. The
typical plan was 23 narrow bays long and three bays wide under along hipped roof Originally
theroof ridge had ventilation monitors.

Although the historic ssmcture system of Building #45 is intact throughout, the historic
porches are gone. Original doors and windows remain but are boarded up. The original stair
hall gpace and the converted barracks goaceswith interior columns remain. Stables #43-47 were
converted into recmit barracks in 1908 following plan #1-832 for converson from stables to
barracks. Building #45 is vacant.

18. #46 Cavdry Stable. 46 Hunter Rd. 1895. C
Origina constmction of dables #46 was according to Quartemader Plan 44-A. The
typical plan was 23 narrow bays long and three bays wide under along hipped roof Originally
theroof ridge had ventilation monitors,
The floor of the historic eest porch remains, but its roof is gone. Original doors and
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windows remain, mostly boarded up. The originad sar hall goece and the converted baracks
Soaceswith interior columns remain. Stables#43-47 were converted into recmit barracks in 1908
following plan #1-832 for converson from stablesto barracks. Building #46 is currently used as
a Civil Engineering sorage facility.

19. #47 Cavary Stable. 47 Hunter Rd. 1895. C

Origina constmction of gables #47 was according to Quatermader Plan 44-A. The
typical plan was 23 narrow bays long and three bays wide under along hipped roof Originally
the roof ridge had ventilation monitors.

The historic gmcture system of building #47 is intact throughout. The building retains
the original porch on the westem sde with wood pogts and standing ssem metd roofing. Most
original doors and windows are boarded up. The origina sair hal space and the converted
barracks goaces with interior columns remain. Stables #43-47 were converted into recmit
barracks in 1908 following plan #1-832 for converson from gablesto barracks. Building #47 is
vacant.

20. #48 Quartermagter Storehouse. 48 Keamey Rd. 1900. C

Congmcted according to Quartermager Plan #116. The west wing is two and a half
gories, with alunette in the north-facing gable end. To the eedt, aone and ahalf story wing has
a seventbay hip-roofed porch with wooden pods detailed with capital moldings and metd
raillings. Beyond the porch, five additiona bays of the wing include a former door, now minus
its entrance gairs. To the south end of the eet wing, and offset by one bay, is a ten-bay one-
gory wing with alow-pitched roof Itsthree Sde bays include a concrete ramp to double doors
formerly used & a loading dock. A squared mbble foundation rises to a water table
incorporating the large stone lintels of the basement windows. Windows in brick portions of the
building are recessed under ssgmentd arches composad of three courses of heeders

Despite much masonry patching, the building hes a notable sanse of historic authenticity.
It has a central gabled one and ahalf story section of five bays, with lower three-bay wings on
both gdes. Porch detailing includes capita moldings on posts, with meta hand railings. The
historic mcture sysem is intact throughout. Wood porch posts and trim gppear to be good
copies of authentic detailing. Currently the Army Resarve occupies building #48.

21. #50 Forage House. 50 Davis &.. 1894. C
Built according Quartermeaster Plan #53A the former Forage House isalong, Sde gabled
building of irregular fenestration and utilitarian stone foundation. Window and door openings
have been reworked extensively over the years. A more recent addition, consmcted of red brick
on a concrete basg, is on the westem sde of the building and hes an eest-facing gable and south
garagedoor. Building #50 is vacant.

22. #51 Garage. 1961. NC
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The origina #51 was awagon shed built according to Quartermaster Plan 60-A in 1895.
The current Building #51 is afl at-roofedtwo-door brick garage with a lower three-bay office
wing adjacent. Because it was built after the defined period of significance, and becauseit lacks
the character-defining architectural feetures typica of the pod, it is conddered an intmsive
dement and a "noncontributing” stmcture for the historic district. Building #51 is the Roads and
Grounds Maintenance Shop for the Air National Guard.

23. #52 Quartermager Stable. 52 DavisDr.. 1894. C

Built according to Quatermager Plan #54, the old Quartemagter Stable dandsin a row
with Buildings #50 and #53. It is a long gable-roofed building with a large garage door a the
north end and irregularly soeced short windows down the Sdes. Unique among the former sable
buildings a the Barracks, it has an upper row of windows, as though to light aloft. Window and
door openings were extensgvely reworked as the fiinction of the building changed. Most recently
it was remodded into apainting shed. Building #52 currentlyftmctionsas Corrosion Control for
the Air National Guard.

24. #53 Caroenter's Shop. 53 DavisDr.. 18A4. C
The Capenter's Shop was congmcted according to Quartermaster Plan #59-B. It is
another long gabled brick building inthe row with Buildings #50 and 52. A small addition has
been added recently to the southem sde. Window openings are for the most part original, and
include a sx over sx windows in the north gable.  The gone foundation displays historic
craftsmanship. Building #53 currentlyftinctionsss Dissster Preparedness for the Air National
Guard.

25. #55 Bakery. 55 Cooke Rd.. 1905. C

Built according to Quartermage Plan #49-M, the northfr ontof Building #55 is a well-
preserved small-scale hip-roofed building with afive-baycenter section breaking forward about
a foot, with two additional bays on @the sde Theeas end has aflat-r oofedporch with thin
wooden aupports shdtering a garage door, which is probably an dteration.  Building #55 is
aurrently an Army National Guard Maintenance Shop. This dmcure even though it contains
goad integrity for the gte is due for demdlition in early 2010. Note The building was
demoalished just prior to submisson to Keegper. Itisnot shown on attached district map.

26. #59 Stable Guard House. 59 Keamey Rd.. 1896. C
One of four onegory dable guardhouses (#59, 60, 61, 62) built according to
Quatermagter Plan #39-A. Buildings#60 and #62 are no longer sanding. It has three front
bays and 2 sde onesunder a hipped roof, with a hipped porch roof on brick posts sheltering the
front door. Windows are 9x over Sx. The centrafireplaceand chimney are built a& an angle to
the building. A smdl and compatible recent addition is & the back. The building functioned as
apos chapd until the 1990s Building #59 sarves as a Conference and Training Center for the
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Air National Guard.

27. #61 Stable Guard House. 61 Johnson Rd.. 1896. C
The sscond of the two surviving stable guard housss built according to Quartermaster
Plan #39-A. Itisnearly identical to Building #59 with the following exceptions: it has two front
doors, its porch pods are wooden, there is a one-bay compatible recent addition to the back,
which includes abarrier freeramp, and there is a 9de entrance.  After fimctioning as the Stable
Guard House the building became the Veterinaian's Office. Building #61 saves as a
Conference and Training Center for the Air Nationa Guard.

28. #64 Firehouse. 64 Keamey Rd.. 1896. C
Built according to Quartermagter Plan #98, the old Frehouse hes two gories, with three
dde bays and a broadly overhanging boxed comice. Windows are six-over-six. The sscond
floor windows have lintels that are painted to merge with the comice. A one-bay, one-story
addition has pargpet walls a the ends four-over-four windows, and a shed roof The garage
door on the north 9de has been replaced. Building #64 is currently a Supply and Equipment
Warehouse for the Air National Guard.

29. #65 Subsgence Sorehouse 65 Keamey Rd.. 1896. C

The building islong and narrow, deven bays by two, with upstairs windows a the ends.
There isatwo-window gabled dormer over the primary entrance, which isthe third bay from the
west end on the north sde. 1t has modem double doors shdtered by a gabled porch on concrete
geps, the outline of the bricked-up origina door remans visible to the right. Interesting
architecturd features includethe triple arched masonry window openings, the date roof dormer,
and the decorative cast concrete windowsills. The interior of the building has been recently
remodeled. Currently itisBage Civil Engineering for the Air National Guard.

30. #66 Band Barracks. 66 Shaman Rd.. 189%6. C

Building #66, built according Quartermester Plan #61-B, is smdler than the res of the
row of barracks inwhich it dts. In 1976 the National Guard renovated the building to serve as
an emergency operaions canter and to provide goecefor socidfiinctions.Private bedrooms were
added to the sscond floor to accommodete visiting officers during training periods.

Thebuilding istwo and ahalf stories high, with acomiced, hipped roof Thefront porch
has wood pogts and retums.  Itsthree bays dretch across the front a the first floor level, but on
the second floor, it hes only one bay under a hipped roof An offset reer wing extends four
unequa bays onthe 9de. Segmentd arched windows are two-over-two.  The end chimneys
rise insde the comice to bisect pediment dormers. Building #66 is currently a Defense Energy
Fudsfacility.
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31. #78 Atkinson Hall. 78 DavisRd.. 1912. C

Building #78 was built according to Quartermager Plan # 2-1003 for adining capacity of
1,600 men. The messhall is congmcted of concrete and ded inaClasscd Reviva style. Each
of its deven by five bays isrecessad within the ssmcturad frameworkof piers and beams, and on
the north facade the piers become pilasters supporting a pedimented pargpet. A second entrance
is gpproached by a long flight of gairs with bulkheaeds tying into the building's water table.
Windows are small louvered casaments. A south wing, five bays by three, cotmects to the main
building by afour-bay link.

This building is important to the character of the post. Its light color harmonizes well
with the lower level limestone masonry court between #36 and #37, and with the limestone walls
0 characterigic of the post. The historic dmcture sydem is intact throughout. In 1971 the
building was converted into an armory with alarge drill floor and basament offices. The Army
National Guard now uses Building #78.

32. #90 Company Officer's Quarters. 90 Grant Rd.. 1940. C

This and the adjacent #91 and #92 Grant Road were built & the same time to
Quartermader plan 57 and have views of the Mississippi River. #90- #92 Grant Road is now
owned by the United Stiates Govemment but has been declared surplus, and de-accesson
procedures are underway. These buildingsuntil recently were quarters for the U.S. Air Force
Officers that managed the Defense Mapping Agency in &. Louis. They are two-story, hip-roofed
brick buildingsin Georgian Revival style, eech with two residentid units. Each unit has an
daborate Georgian entry with afanlight above the door andframedby pilasters and a pediment.
Windows are sx-over-six. Each unit has aone-story sunroom ontheriverside.

33. #91 Company Officer's Quarters. 91 Grant Rd.. 1940. C

This and the adjacent #90 and #92 Grant Road were built a the same time to
Quartermader plan 57 and have views of the Mississppi River. #90- #92 Grant Road is now
owned by the United States Govemment but hes been dedared surplus, and de-accesson
procedures are underway. These buildingsuntil recently were quarters for the U.S. Air Force
Officers that managed the Defense Mapping Agency in &. Louis. They are two-story, hip-roofed
brick buildingsin Georgian Reviva style, eech with two residentia units. Each unit hes an
daborate Georgian entry with afanlight above the door andframedby pilasters and a pediment.
Windows are six-over-six. Each unit has a one-story sunroom on theriverside.

34. #92 Company Officer's Quarters. 92 Grant Rd.. 1940. C
This and the adjacent #90 and #91 Grant Road were built & the same time to
Quartermader plan 57 and have views of the Missssippi River. #90- #92 Grant Road is how
owned by the United Stiates Govemment but hes been dedared surplus, and de-accesson
procedures are underway. These buildingsuntil recently were quarters for the U.S. Air Force
Officers that managed the Defense Mapping Agency in St. Louis. They are two-story, hip-roofed
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brick buildingsin Georgian Revival style, eech with two residentia units. Each unit has an
daborate Georgian entry with afanlight above the door andframedby pilasters and a pediment.
Windows are sx-over-six. Each unit has aone-story sunroom on theriverside.

35. #96 Red Cross Building. 96 Worth Rd.. 1942 C

Although it is a modes building with low proportions, it was desgned to present a
formal front to the parade ground, with atemple-shgped center section. Foursgquare columns and
two antae support a pediment with central bull's-eye window. Square Sx-pane windows above
the front door and flanking first-floor windows cregte the illusion of a second story within this
portico. Long four-bay, one-story wings dretch from the center section, with sx-over-six
windows and asbestos-shingled end gables The south facade hes an entrance centered under a
smal gabled hood.

L ocated to the sde and unattached to building # 96 isabrick, four-car, gable roof garage.
The garage faces south sitting across the dreet from the old Red Cross Building and adjacent to
the Pot Exchange and Gymnasum (#17). This smdl brick building makes a modest
contribution to the spatid definition of the westem edge of the parade ground. Four garage
doors open on the southem sde of the building and foursquare windows correspond on the north
sde The gable ends have asbhestos shingles.

36. #97 Service. 97 Davis Rd.. 1932. C
This concrete-block sde gable-roofed building hes hed al itswindows enclosed and new
meta doors insarted. The building maintainsitsorigina shgpeand location. Building #97 now
provides goecefor Hazardous Wadte Storage for the Air National Guard.

37. #99 Service. PV Davis Rd.. 1932. C
This long, Sde gabled Service Building hes a concrete base and duminum siding. Two
garage doors open to the west 9de. Building #99 is now the Carpenter, Plumbing and Elecfric
Shop for the Air National Guard.

38. #250 Annex. 25 Shaman Rd. 1939 C

Five of the man baracks buildings facing the Parade Ground have one-story annexes
pardlding their southem Sdes mnning dong Keamey Sirest. The annexes were added as a
result of the large amount of troops assgned to Jefferson Barracks in the few short years before
World War |1, yet they have an architectura character very supportive of the older buildingson
dte. The annexes are joined to Barracks #25, #26, and #27. They dand sgparate but directly
behind Barracks #28 and #29. Although these buildings were constmcted in different years,
(1933, 1939 to 1942), they are nearly identical indesign. They eech are congdmcted deven bays
long and three uneven bays wide. Hipped gable roofs extend down the ddes to cregate shed-
roofed entrance vestibules. Tall chinmeys rise from the south walls neer the comers. Windows
ae mostly two over two under ssgmented arches.  Building Annex #250 hes a concrete



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number _7 Page 16 Jefferson Barracks Historic

District
St. Louis County, Missouri

foundation and sx over sx windowsa the ends. A concrete loading dock is a the eest end.
Annex #250 is now vacant.

39. #260 Annex. 26 Shaman Rd. 1933 C

The anex was added as a result of the large amount of troops assgned to Jefferson
Barracks in the few short years before World War |1, and has an architectural character very
supportive of the older buildings on site. It Sands sgparate from but directly behind Barracks #28
and #29. Although congmcted in 1933 it is nearly identical in desgn to #250 and #270. Itis
deven bays long and three uneven bays wide. Hipped gable roofs extend down the ddes to
cregte a shed-roofed entrance vedtibule. Tall chinmeys rise from the south walls neaer the
comers. Windows are mostly two over two under ssgmeanted arches The Army Resarve now
usesthisbuilding.

40. #270 Annex. 27 Sherman Rd. 1940 C

The anex was added as a result of the large amount of troops assgned to Jefferson
Barracks in the few short years before World War |1, and hes an architectural character very
supportive of the older buildings on Ste. It Sands sgparate from but directly behind Barracks #28
and #29. Although constmcted in 1940 it is nearly identical in desgn to #250 and #260. Itis
deven bays long and three uneven bays wide. Hipped gable roofs extend down the Sdes to
cregte a shed-roofed entrance vestibule. Tall chimneys rise from the south walls near the
comers. Windows are mostly two over two under ssgmented arches Thisanex hes a squared

mbble foundation with a concrete darcase a the eet end. The Army Nationa Guard 1138’
Engineering Battalion currently utilizes thisbuilding.

41. #280 Annex. 28 Sherman Rd. 1940 C

The annex dands separate from but directly behind Barracks #28 and #29. Although
congmcted in 1940 it isnearly identical in design to #250, #260 and #280. It is deven bays long
and three uneven bays wide. Hipped gable roofs extend down the 9des to create a shed-roofed
entrance vedtibule. Tall chimneys rise from the south walls neer the comers. Windows are
mostly two over two under ssgmented arches Thisannex isbuilt into the hillside so that the west
entrance is a ground level while the eest entrance is aove a substantidly expossd squared
mbble basement. Once the Air National Guard Mess Hall, this building is now the location of
157 ACG Intelligence.

42. #290 Annex. 29 Sherman Rd. 1940 C
The annex dands sgparate from but directly behind Barracks #28 and #29. Although
congmcted in 1940 it isnearly identical indesign to #250, #260 and #280. It is deven bays long
and three uneven bays wide. Hipped gable roofs extend down the 9des to create a shed-roofed
entrance vestibule. Tall chimneys rise from the south walls neer the comers.  Windows are
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mostly two over two under ssgmented arches. The continuing drop in the ground on which this
annex dts fiilly exposes the south sde of the squared mbble basement, which is extended a the
eedt end by aright-angled retaining wall. Originally used as amesshall, currently, the building
housesthe Air National Guard Medical and Conmiunications Center.

43. #404 MD-4 Shdter for Radar. NC
This is a solid cinderblock ssmcture that hes one sted door. The building hes a flat roof
with various satdlite and radar ingmments atached to it. It was built with in the last 30 years
and therefore does not contribute to the historic significance of the district.

44. #531 lce House. 1941 C
This mggedly constmcted concrete building hes seven bays dong its long elevation, one
blank, otherswith up to three openings. Theroof has an overhang, with stepped gables marking
the ends of the building. During World War |1 the building was part of agroup of warehouses
serviced by railroad spurs. Building #531 is now vacant and badly deteriorated. The building is
scheduled for demolition in May 2010.

45. Parade Ground. 1826/1891 C

In 1891 a new constmction program began a Jefferson Barracks that led to the remova
of al maor buildings from the earliest years of the post. The 1820s sone barracks and officer
quarters surrounding the original post quadrangle were razed. |n their place a line of brick
double barracks estabdlished the southem border of agreetly expanded and newly graded parade
ground, which was extended north to anew row of brick officer quarters. Today the north sde
of the parade ground is fenced of f from Hancock road and isthe primary entranceto the National
Guard bas=  For abrief period of time from 1998 to 2008, the parade ground was converted to
basebdl fields. Recently all dmctures and objects associated with the ball fields have been
removed and the grounds are being tended in their origina fashion. Where the fields were
located can been seen by the darker patches of grassin an agrid view. Originally the parade
ground were entirely surrounded by trees somestill remain today neer the new gate.

46. Fighter Plane. F4-E Phantom 1. 2003 NC
The plane has moved to this current oot as a monument on kme 7, 2003. The plague a
its bese reads.
This historicalfighter-bomberis proudly
displayed in memory of those women and
men who have passad through these gates
in sarvice to their country. The personnd of
Jefferson Barracks Air Nationa Guard
Station dand grateful to those mambers of
the 131Mfighterwing for preserving this
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monument of Freeadom
7 June 2003

47. Sundid. 1841. C
This sundid has a limestone bese holding abrassdia. A wrought iron fence surrounds
the sundid with triangular points & the top of eech spindle of the fence. The fence is
approximately one and ahalf feet from the limestonepillar.

48. Cannon. C
Located behind the Administration Building is a cannon that hes been pointed a the
Mississippi River ance the beginning of World War | or earlier. The exact date is unknown, but
the base of the cahnon that supports the firing barrel was built of the same limestone as the
Administration building.

49. Hagpolewith Civil War cannons. C
Thesetwo camons now Sit as amonument to their service during the Civil War. The two
cannons flanks a st of three flagpoles ingtdled in front of the Administration building.
Origindly these two canons were located where the mounted cannon that Sts behind the
Administration building is today. They were moved from their location and replaced by the
mounted WWI cannon in the 1930's.

Private

50. #30 Hospital Administration Building. 30 Shaman Rd.. 1908 C

#30 Shaman Road is the Sylvan House Retirement Center. It was originally built to
srvethe hospital acrassthe dreet (Building #69, Number 52 below). The building hes sx bays
on the northem fagede. It is atwo story building constmcted of red brick and hes six over Six
windows with a centra doorway. The doorway hes afanlight above it and aset of paired doors.
Each door hes nine panesof glass. . Bemadette's Parish acquired the building in 1950 for use
& an dementary school. It became a resdence for the School Sgers of Notre Dame in 1954.
The parish sold the building in 1985, and the present owners acquired itin 1989.

51. #68 Recmiting Barracks. 68A Shaman Rd.. 1908 C

This building is baessd on Quatemade plan 194. The building is congmcted of a
multicolored brick unlike the rest of the post. The bricks are light to medium colors of red and
brown. The limestone foundation has glass block windows inset for light inthe besement. The
roof isahipped roof with agphdt shingles. S. Bemadette's Parish acquired the building in 1950
and is usad as the Rectory for &. Bemadette Catholic Church. The church built an addition on
the southem eevation in 1950. This addition is covered in multicolor brick to match the rest of
the ssmcture but hed a large beige metd garage door facing the south. The addition was built as
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an atached one car garagefor the clergy.

52. #69 Pog Hospital. 69 Randolph Place. 1909 C

The pos hospitd was congmcted based on the Surgeon Generd plans for hospita
congtmction. Now #69 Randolph Place is a facility for Mehlville School District. It is
congmcted of red brick with a limestone foundation. It hes 9 bays, the centra portion of the
dmcture st further forward than the two dde wings. The windows ae Sx-over-one sseh
windows. Severd of the windows are grouped in threes. It has a 9de gable roof with asphdt
shingles. Thereisalarge dentd molding in the frieze.

The building was originally surrounded by severd leves of degping porches and had a
number of dormers. Thesewere removed when the Jefferson Barracks School District 78, newly
organized in 1948, acquired the building after World War II.  District 78 merged with the
Mehlville R-9 School District in 1964. Currentiy the school district houses its maintenance
operations on the lower floor and surrounding yards. The upper floor hes officesfor district
academidans that deveop the curriculums for the districts schools.

53. #71 Hospital Corns Sargeant's Quarters. 71 Sherman Rd.. 1909 C

#71 Sherman Road isatwo gory duplex. Itisnow aprivately owned two-family resdence
This stmcture ismade of red brick and hes two sgparate porches for eech entrance. Thewindows
ae sx-over-sx sseh windows with shutters flanking both sdes The roof is a cross geble with
agphdt shingles and has a large brick chimney rising from the center of the roofline. It has a
limestone foundation.

54. #82 Pogt Theeter. 68 Shaman Rd.. 1933 C
#068 Sherman Road hes been St. Bemadette Catholic Church ance 1952. It isconstmcted
of red brick. Thisbrick building hes lost itsorigina marquee, which has been replaced by a wide
gone surround and recessed entry.  The building retains other origina features, including the
brick quoins on the front fagade comers of the smcture; it has aflat arched first-floor doorway,
all with omamenta keystones. The windows are sx-over-six sseh windows. The large front
pediment has asmall lunette window. Itisfront gabled with an asphdt shingle roof

55. #193 NCO Quarters. 198 Shaman Rd.. 1930 C
#193 Sherman Road is a two gtory duplex. It is now a privately owned two-family
resdence. This smcture is built of red brick and with a concrete and brick foundation. The
smcture hes six-over-sx windows with a centra entrance on the northem fagade. The building
has rounded fanlightsover the doorways, which are congmcted of wood. The roof is a Sde
gable with end chimneys and agphdt shingles. There are one story wings to on eech gable end.

56. #201 NCO Quarters. 201 Sheman Rd.. 1930 C
#201 Sherman Road is a two gory duplex. It is now a privately owned two-family
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resdence. Thisbuilding isbuilt of red brick with a concrete and brick foundation. The smcture
has six-over-sx windows with a centra entrance on the northem fegade. Theroof isa sde gable
with end chimneys and agphdt shingles. There are one story wings to on each gable end.

57. #202 NCO Quarters. 202 Shamen Rd.. 1930 C
#202 Sherman Road is a two story duplex. It is now a privately owned two-family
resdence. Thisbuilding isbuilt of red brick with a concrete and brick foundation. The ssmcture
has sx-over-six windows with a cenfra entrance way on the northem fagade. Theroof isasde
gable with end chinmeys and asphdt shingles. There are one story wingsto on each gable end.

58. #203 NCO Quarters. 203 Shamen Rd.. 1930 C
#203 Sherman Road is a two story duplex. It is now a privately owned two-family
resdence. Thisbuilding isbuilt of red brick with a concrete and brick foundation. The smcture
has six-over-sx windows with a centra entrance way on the northem fagade. Theroof is agde
gable with end chimneys and agphdt shingles. There are one story wings to on each gable end.

59. #204 NCO Quarters. 204 Shamen Rd.. 1930 C
#204 Sherman Road is a two gtory duplex. It is now a privately owned two-family
resdence. Thisbuilding isbuilt of red brick with a concrete and brick foundation. The ssmcture
has six-over-six windows with a centrd entrance way on the northem fagade. Theroof isadde
gable with end chimneys and agphdt shingles. There are one story wings to on eech gable end.

60. JD Streete and Company #1 River Road. C

The smcture is built of concrete glazed blocks and divided into five sections. Each
section is divided with a ged fire door. Each section haes two bays. 1n each bay there is ether
large windows with 16 panes of glass covered inwrought iron bars or alarge duminum garage
door that opensup to top. Because of the large amount of soldiers coming to the post between
the world wars there is evidence of two sections being converted to holding cdlls during WWI.
These sections have ance been converted back to Sorage arees

There are severd outbuildings and smctures for the company there are over 30 dorage
tanks for their products a fuel trandfer sation and a smal gate house that is used only by the
coadt guard. Although the date of the origind constmction is unknown, the stmcture wes
originally usad as awarehouse until the company purchased the location in the late 1940's.

61. Sde House- Bresk Room for ID Stregte& Company. NC
There is located next to the central section of the long building a small wood stmcture
with vinyl siding that isused as abresk room for the workersof JD Streete. The ssmcture is Sde
gabled and has only one window opening, which houses a window air-conditioning unit. The
roof has a medium pitch with asphdt shingles It is unknown when the building was built but
with the exception of new siding and roofing shingles it has not been changed snce 1979 when
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the current plant manager began working a the plant.

62. Boat Dock. C
The location of the current boat dock is where the main boat landing hes been located
dnce 1826, though the dock itself has been rebuilt many times. The dock is constmcted of very
large wooded timbers supporting a concrete platform hanging out into the Mississippi River. Itis
unknown when the concrete platform was built but the dock hes not been changed since 1979
when the current plant manager began working & the plant.

St Louis Countv Parks

63. #12-14 Double S of Officer's Quarters. 12 Hancock Ave.. 1898 C

12-14 Hancock Avenue is atwo story duplex that was built usng Quartermegter plan 115
and was congmcted by Richard Deutman & Son architects The unattached double garage
located behind building 12-14 Hancock is congmcted of a warm gray concrete block with
beveled edges The building hes aflat roof and a epped block pargpet in front. Sdewindows
ae filled with glass 20 bricks. The same design isused for the garagesa 16-18 Hancock and 20
Hancock. The building is going to house a smal musaum dedicated to deveopment of the
telephone.

64. #16-18 Double S of Officer's Quarters. 16 Hancock Ave.. 1898 C

16-18 Hancock Avenue is a two gsory duplex that was built usng Quartermaster plan
115 and was congmcted by Richard Deutman & Son architects. The unatached double garage
located behind building 16-18 Hancock is congmcted of a warm gray concrete block with
beveled edges. The building hes aflat roof and a sepped block pargpet in front. Sdewindows
ae filled with 20 glass blocks. This building hes benefited from a restoration conducted when
the owner, the &. Louis County Depatment of Parks and Recredtion leased it to the Civilian
Consarvation Corps Alumni Association. Itsframe second-floor portions have been retumed to
their original cgpboard covering, and the front gables have bull's-eye windows. A concrete
ramp aong the eest 9de has railingsand latticework to match the front porches

65. #17 Pogt Exchange and Gymnasum. 222 Worth Rd.. 1905 C

Its desgn. Quatermader plan 158, was duplicated a other pods around the country. This
building hes the mogt imposing presence of the tum-of the-century buildings no longer
administered by the military. The brick building hes atall, rock-faced, squared stone basament
terminating in a broad ashlar water table. This serves as a bage for the Sx brick pilasters that
mark the comers of the five-bay building and cregte a temple form for the center three bays,
which bresk forward under a modillion pediment with a large stone-framed lunette window.
Pilagter beses and capitds as well as window lintels are ashlar gone. Windows are two-over-
two, paired in some places. The front door hes a classicd goneframewith scrolled brackets
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supporting a pediment. Blind recessed pands ae &t into the brick below the second-floor
windows. The broad modillion frieze continues around the building, which has three baysto the
ddes and a longer four-bay wing to the rear, which accommodates the gymnasum. Thefrieze
was badly damaged by water and hes been restored.

After the new Mess Hall was congmcted in 1912, the Post Exchange function moved to
Building 36, the old mess hall. Exchange functions moved to Building 224 in 1919. The
gymnasium fiinction remained. The Pogt Exchange was not transferred to & Louis County
Parksintheinitia creation of Jefferson Barracks Park in 1950 but remaned the property of the
National Guard until 1988. It had become severdy deteriorated by the time the Missouri Civil
Wa Museum leesd it in 2002. Since then, this group hes mede subgtantid repairs to the
building looking toward a tenryear restoration plan, with the open date for the public of April
2011.

66. #94 Old Bank. 94 Worth Rd.. 1943 C

#94 Worth Road, owned by the S. Louis County is now owned by S. Louis County
Department of Parks and Recredtion. This long, narrow building, one of the last permanent
buildings to be added to the post, was originally used as abank and still haes avault spaceto the
rear. It is of cinder-block constmction on a concrete dab, with brick veneer now painted red.
The 3-bay front devation includes a front door with narow sddights, now boarded, and two
six-over-sx windows with protective meta grilles. The south Sde, toward Sheman Road, hes 8
irregularly gpaced bays, including a 9de door, while the north sde hes six bays, including
severd boarded windows. The building now sarves as the heedquarters for the J.B. Football
Club.

67. #200 Nurse's Resdence. 20 Hancock Ave.. 1939 C

#20 Hancock Road is now owned by the &. Louis County Department of Parks and
Recredtion. It is atwo-story brick building deven bays long in Georgian Reviva style. The
center entrance has a done surround with pilasters and entablature. The window above is dso
goneframed and has a wrought-iron baconette. The end bays a both ends are two-story sun
porches with ssgmentd-arched windows on the second floor. Windowsin the wings are three-
part, narrow four-over-four. Other windows are double-hung, sx-over-six. The hipped date
roof has four hip-roofed dormers in front. A broad flat water table marks the basament level,
which isbrick where exposed.

The unattached seven-car garage behind the Nurse's Resdence is detalled like those
behind 12-14 Hancock and 16-18 Hancock, constmcted of a warm gray concrete block with
beveled edges The building hes aflat roof and a sepped block pargpet in front. Sdewindows
ae filled with 20 glass blocks.

68. #224 Pogt Exchange Lunchroom. 224 Worth Rd.. 1919 C
#224 Worth Road is now owned by S. Louis County Depatment of Parks and
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Recregtion. It isabroad one-gtory brick building, 13 bays by 10. It hes three front doors st in
classcd gone frames omamented by acanthusleaf brackets. Half-round columns and a
pediment frame the center door. Two Smilar doorways are on the north sde of the building.
The front éevation ds0 hes 10 tall narrow windows, now closed (boarded over awaiting the
replacement windows), and the north elevation has 8 smilar windows. Therear elevation has a
four-bay porch with a shed roof The building was originally intended to expand the Pogt
Exchange functionsnext door a Building 17 and Building 36, the old messhall. Following the
closure of the pogt, it was usad for many years by the Boys and Girls Club, both under National
Guard and County ownership. It is now in poor condition but has been stabilized snce being
vacated by the Club. The Civil War Musaum edablished in building 17 hes acquired the
smcture and will rehabilitateit for use as aCivil Wer Library.

69. #345 Bam. 345 North Rd.. 1878 NC

#345 North Road (formerly 348 CCC Road) is now the Visitors Center for Jefferson
Barracks Higtoric Park, owned by the &. Louis County Department of Parks and Recreetion. |1t
is unusud inthis part of the country in having two stories. The mbble sone ground floor was
accessble from three sdes, while the board-and-batten supersdmcture was accessble through
doors on the west sde. A gone ramp to the west doors was built in 1925. About 1930, the
upper floor was converted to poured concrete. The WPA used the building for sorage in the
1930s, but in 1942 it became a"Visitors House' for family andfriendsvisiting the thousands of
inductees who were coming through the Barracks. Sometime between 1945 and 1950, thewhole
wooden portion of the building was removed. The stone ground floor continued in a variety of
usssuntil County Parks adgpted it for aVisitors Center aoout 1980. Hal Olsen, architect on the
Parks & Recredation staff, desgned a replacement upper floor for the bam in 2001, following
photos and descriptions of the "Visitors House' period of the building. After review by the
Missouri Historic Preservation Office, constmction of this and rehabilitation of the sone ground
floor were completed in 2003. The new building, like the old, has board-and-batten siding, with
large doors and aramp on the west 9de and double-hung six-over-ax windows. Two additional
doors and garcases on the west Sde provide emargency egress. Though similar in design to the
1878 building, the reconstmction of the second story hes affected the historic integrity of the
building.

70. #350 Stable. 350 North Rd.. 1851 C
#350 North Road (formerly 349 CCC Road) is how a museum building owned by the
S. Louis County Department of Parks and Recredtion. The two-story sone stable was built a
the sametime as the Laborers House and the 1851 powder magazine. It has large segmentd-
arched carriage openings, centered on the eest 9de but placed to the right on the west elevation,
with segmentd-arched windows a the end, to the Sde, and in the three bays above. The walls
have large ashlar quoins, and the gable roof overhangs the end walls. Thisbuilding originaly
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shdtered the horses and wagons nesded by the ordnance fiinctions that were then being
transferred herefrom the . Louis Arsend. It was restored in 1960.

71. #355 Frame House. 455 Bagbv Rd.. 1867 C
#455 Bagby Sreat (formerly 355 CCC Road). Currently itisasingle-story white frame
reddence used by an employee of the . Louis County Department of Parks and Recrestion.
The resdence was originally clgpboard and now hes duminum siding. 1t is L-shaped, with a
long veranda dong the eet Sde of the longer wing. A sscond porch dands beforethe eedt gable
end. It has ahipped roof with asmal gable over the entrance, which forms the primary entrance
to the house. This porch has an daborate pierced and latticedfriezeand jigsaw brackets inset
with fan shgpes The house was originally built as quaters for the family of a non-
commissioned officer. During World War |1, it sarved as quarters for bachdor officers. An
unattached outbuilding is used as a large garage with a gable roof and duminum sding. The
garage is anon-contributing ssmcture to the district.

72. #360 Laborers House. 360 North Rd.. 1851 C

#360 North Road (formerly 350 CCC Road) is now a museum building owned by the
. Louis County Department of Paks and Recreation. This two-story stone building was
eected a the sametime as the sable and the 1851 powder magazine. The house hes three bays
front and back, with six-over-six double-hung windows with working shutters, and entrances in
the westem bay. The gable end walls rise to broad pargpets, and the chimney is centered inthe
eed wall. The building was restored about 1960, with an omamenta garden to the rear or south
Sde.

73. #400 Stone Powder Magazine. 400 Bagbv Rd.. 1857 C

#400 Bagby Strest (formerly 100 Ridge Road) is now the Powder